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ESF students raise funds through music
for SEN

January 2014

Students from Renaissance College, King George V School, West
Island School and South Island School showcased their musical
talents in January 2014 to raise funds for students with special
educational needs. Their performances were followed by the Hong
Kong “Jazz Family” Fest 2014 which raised HK$300,000 for Jockey
Club Sarah Roe School’s Parent Teacher Association.
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Open Door EsF Emplsyes Assistance Programme

# A confidenitiol counselling service. to assist stall
members with personal professional andior
wellbeing issues that might affect their success.

# ANl inquiries and sessions are strictly
confidential. Staff Members do not need 1o
go through an Internal appreval system.
Counsellors  will discuss privacy and

iality when a ing !
Begins.

# ESF Support - All ESF & ESL hull-time stalf members who are

entitied to ESF medical benefils may receive up fo six free

If you need the service ...
 Call St John diectty 3t 2525 7207108 or email them ot
info@sjcshiccom

# M additional sessions are required, staff members may continee
om a sall-pay scheme a1 a discounted rale.

# The discounted rate wil be extended to family members and ¥ Bring your ESF medical card along to verify your status
other ESF & ESL stalt members who are not entitied 1o ESF # More details of Open Door can be found on Galeway -
medical benefits. HER folder

StJoha's Counselling Service = s s v e v s vwenvvosvsrroenrrersnrrnrrrnnssnnrsnnnnns
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eounsling experiance and repuisble deademi: qualficuions from Hong Keng ind oversess instiussns. SICS counseliors arw boih male and lemale with English.
Berman, Fraach, Kere, din, et

cutng bulipng sefeatser. agen pareiing, o OV - i,

HEEE

WETEREZERAMFE EARERHMNFEERRR
BHRBARERBEZ LD ERNE - RBRARIATIR
BB FREFEEARN  EE I REREME
N2EBENEINBERBER—RIER - BREBLAES
BB T35 AOpen DoorREEHEMR © 88 TIERE
A BENMGLEESHE#E -

AEERFHBAEMBNEXRBIBEBRELEM
BREMA KRB THB25ERKMN - EaRKEIE
- 2MABUBS30A - E5 AT RTEBKGIELE
FUSEANEBET  QI0RREFHBEABS HEH
ETHTERT  IYHKRBERTEEENRELES
£ e

@ REBRIBFFERE 2013-2014




R 40 2 0 B B i 4R

BERN2013F8 AR LN ISRF RHIMHETS
Mo W EEEIRBE2012FRFETHRMF MBS
BERETE  RMAETTERFHAIETE - R
REBITHNEERLEERITHEFED - ROITRHIEHZ
ANEWF K FEEEITRE TIE - 201455H - BB
ZAERBNR2014- 152 F RE2BHBENFH3.5%  BF
BINEFIEHE A B FMEEA B OFH L HEETTRET

BERL

BEEBUREBMNEAMANMRETHRENTARBE
Ko BEANEREIRAITRALinked In RS & R ED
NIEHEBAE - MPITHRABERBRARL AR BAR
W EEZREAERREEE EAFE  HKEN140ME
NEAFREEHE S KUK BHEB5,3001) 5 -

RERK

RELREERRERENMA - BEANERBAGE
BRANMEFANERBE  LEHTESHER - &
PHREFRGERBEEZNRE - BPITHAEANE
IREINIRAAE ©

ANER




REHBFRG AR QTG

HEHEREBMERAT (ESL) REESBRHBEMNIESL
FMEAR  RERDHER - BEHERANUEEER
BRSNS - AEIIREEE - B REMRIMNGHER
120 2013-14FELMBRINEE BT RIEMAE - 2
MRECRELBERN—F - B4 2EBHIKER
IRIERI B A A BUURRIET AT 40 8% ©

/ M

@ HESRIHEFERS 2013-2014



EA=

ESF Sports BABHLNT L FEERBHEES - B2
HIZ N ESF Sports T EEREBFB1E3,000% ° =
MERREDERE THRNEERT  SRXZEES
HEYREEBER RHMRBERRIE - ESF Sports R&
FYERRELions ERBIIRE SN REBEA AT ER
EEISONAAENER - EBISHRAIERBFRERE
MARBRBITHIKEERTE  BERIBRSHEES
RHEZHM o LionsKEERE L F BRIk BRI TH
R WEKREBEBEFT L FHRBEALER  HIKR
%‘5’37‘7@ ' BriEE— IR FTERIZARARSN - ESF Sports TRAIY
REPRMBIERER (AIS) RE &K IE AR
iﬁiﬂz BN RAREB T SRBHIEIKRIESNN - ESF
Sports IR IE =3 T 57 BN B PR 24 B B R VKGR AR o

I]II|'

R2E

%%%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ%%bﬂ)\?ﬁﬂ - RERBEZEHT
= REEAMESET LB HER - ESF Language
and Learmng B Vision First &1E#E 7 —IBALEFTE -
BESHRFANKERE - FHRADESERREAR
BAKFEH  BAIBEERBERN URRESEEBET
E THENMERIZMWCASE R - (ARG EBA A ITE
f.d » ESF Language and Learning RANEERFE T H
ZHIEE WIEEZES2RIMARE o

REHERBERARMRE

HEBRIBFFERS 2013-2014 @



BERTELERENTRE

HESSZLERINNEREY [BEBSLED

B L 440

2014] - B12014F1 8108 X118 HBGrappa’ s Cellar
EUREBIT - EBAZREHEFBEEIE T - EHEA
RE—THRRAFRE &?EL_L EB A B SEE
BdlREREMRRE RIS R MEERERIRE
SN Ke B #SHoward l\/lcCrary~ B LAIE K Fusion 5%
EEBTRAZLELERANFEL -

@ EEERREFERE 2013-2014

REEEAMERLionES

HEFAAMERN2014F#H L [LionEd | £33
2 UNAZEERREREIREREELE - EHN
201459 A29HER - AHI/NE -

HEBTERMEEHENKEE (HKRFU)
HREBESEsTE

2013510 @ RECAR A ER KRB ETEEMEAT BIEHRE
BRAGIETE - (EREAMBRE 5 RERBERES
RIIR R T T & - AR E HEREH1, 2008 THNE
B - UARFARETTR 2008 At BRIVSEN LIZ - HETEE
BAEEIIREHEECRZRETE -

- lﬁi’n'

")
GBY '“‘(‘"\f ‘\LLA JNION




R & ER
RER B

(RERKBA) BRREHEEEDRRRREHHEE
FEM - 2014F - (RERRBM) BEREEREIE
HEZEBRENEN  BREREIZEERENED
BEE - KA ERRBERISN  RETFAATEA

HEEM (www.esf.edu.hk/alumni) & (EERK®
) BFAR ©

REBE

BREX RS
REETERREEHERRE TR ER BN RS
BER AR R BB -

RERE

RABTEREMRAB BN ERERNRERE -
BFESBREBRES  ERVIHRARELES NG
EREEE o b BBRNAEE B RRE A RAERN
EAHSNESESERE RENERDUEEER
RIS -

HEFERHARITRERS

HEERREFERE 2013-2014 @



R b

REBTERA/BRKARTZEEBRY - TERK
BEWBEREMEMRSHEBEE

Wiricome 10 the Island
wmr 0f the 5chool, the Studens, the staff, the pmm 30t other Istanders
getting this ste up m ']

mmlm ‘W are hoping networ
Betaveen alusien, 5ot a0 1he A .\ssnmnnn

‘The rers from school over The next few years sgomglcm-mmnnqm
schosl

M“ A thia procesa, weth your views.
Oour enallends i 1o Faintain the wondemu tsiand Senool spitit whise bulding &
STt O T ST SCRO0H AL Wit will B proud of 10r th feet 50 yéars

1 i5 always & great pasire 1o welcome Back ilanders at any time Just drop

In 3t 3y helle, o Give us wam <

mmswmrguwmw“ bl st et s
o TGRS 50 [Pk dvioneane | Mook

15400 SEH001 ANIMAT 308 SEHCI Peo|

30 years!t

Chis Dinge

ikl

loms  AbcanUs | Gererl ibermatien | Admeasions

@ Peak School
e

Words from the Princigal

Hue s At U+

Adumni

TS, 1508 ANV 110 S B BRSO OF
e el B ot Wt o I Bk B

(B 4 beat ey o Pk bes

B dne Semnece

(B Dorea praien o 6t et

[ Ccs 3 o pretss rusugh T decatis

-

West Island School Alumni Assogciation
) Strength from Diversity

Sha Tin College Alumni Association

“:f.ﬁfl

[t i Alrizat Mlirter in spirit of | "t

Welcome to our Online Community!
& mereags Srom the Princigal

Home  Abmils  LawmNews  PaoioCallery  Croups  AumniFrefle  Membersearcy

Dt Stursed o Wnat et Senay

fI

v
SLTRd you ane very Tch par of ha viske
FAArWIT VLSerth | kv 1o oIS Seslinkd o Mioeed Ba GeBs ELEPERs ¢
Bekd s amares

et S Shi 33 it PSELGBELE o) ik, 43 MR SPars

5 Al a4 e e 45 50 e B 4 b P bt o orarnty sae
e ebep s e o o 0 egheme Sodey e boep s

ity o s 43 POt i 1 VR e 8 BN 30 30 i = Bt 5 o
mdaires 45 s T 618 1 S1hy 00 Ieth A0 w4 2% w4 Abarrt

Bt wares,

Lnns Finetsed

Pacpal

@ REBRIBFFERE 2013-2014



BB

1 $5 1K 2

REERKIPE(ESF)REMBASREANBTRIEBIRAE(ESL)
HZF2014FE8A31HILEFEEREE

ESF ESF ESL ESL g et
(EEHT) 2013-14 2012-13 +% 2013-14 2012-13 +% 2013-14 2012-13 +%
(&) (E3))
Yootk 5
EEA 1,528 1,475 3.6% 491 449 9.4% 1,978 1,884 5.0%
FELERA 30 50 -40% 34 32 6.3% 64 82 -22.0%
G 1,460 1,376 6.1% 514 466 10.3% 1,933 1,802 7.3%
BTIRL 1,171 1,123 4.3% 368 332 10.8% 1,538 1,454 5.8%
Bk
WAEHE 102 82 24.4% 7 3 133.3% 109 85 28.2%
HIERIRE 72 60 20.0% 13 12 8.3% 85 72 18.1%
Hith&BF% 115 111 3.6% 92 89 3.4% 167 161 3.7%
BEHESR
BB ER, - - - 34 30 13.3% 34 30 13.3%
FERHK 98 149 -34.2% 11 15 -26.7% 109 164 -33.55
Hih 2 EE 9 24 -62.5% - - - 9 24 -62.5%
PEWELAE 107 173 -38.2% 1 15 -26.7% 118 188 -37.2%
BIE:
EERH (F58) 77 123# -37.4% -23 -17 353% 54 106* -49.1%
BB 30 50 -40% 34 32 6.3% 64 82 -22.0%
107 173 -382% 11 15 -26.7% 118 188 -37.2%
iR
BEE 2,058 1,876 9.7% 201 183 9.8% 2,224 2,031 9.5%
V&S 1,551 1,404 10.5% 59 51 15.7% 1,610 1,455 10.7%
He R1FH 426 369 15.4% 95 88 6.8% 521 457 14.0%
wafk 777 702 10.7% 177 170 4.1% 919 844 8.9%
AREREE 219 173 26.6% - - - 219 173 26.6%
AR EIfE - - - 8 4 100.0% 8 4 100%
PRI EE 25 - 100% - - - 25 - 100%
& 1,281 1,174 9.1% 24 13 84.6% 1,305 1,187 9.9%
g\ BRER
INER 6,120 6,112 0.1% - - - 6,120 6,112 0.1%
hE 6,812 6,794 0.3% - - - 6,812 6,794 0.3%
FLEB 2R - - - 3,284 3,116 5.4% 3,284 3,116 5.4%
2R - - - 1,214 1,198 1.3% 1,214 1,198 1.3%
HhaRI2 - - - 4,908 4,316 13.7% 4,908 4,316 13.7%
4Est 12,932 12,906 0.2% 9,406 8,630 9.0% 22,338 21,536 3.7%

* EREIB AR - RIS R R BEIG @ RBHE R IR 2 AIAIAEH o

N R AR SR ERAIEREE
2012-13F [ZHIES |2 FE T B BT EAIE 198 MIS T EHE S W TIE A% - BRIFIRASEREBRIGEEEFERIRA2(C) ($16-178) °

HEERREFERE 2013-2014 @



AAFEAR

PN
NEFHEFMRENEBIWABBE528ET B LF
JERE A NN3.6% (2012-135F[F : BH14.75(87m) ° B

I%%%E@%%tﬂﬁ%%%%)\%ﬁ&l\ ({5%@%@4&)\
74.0%) BRBBWAEN - BREHFRBERAD
TEAJE’J%XJ%& EMBETARETRELZEERA -
BENIE EREETZERERLER  REBTS
RIEPR2013-145FE LFHEE - FIHINEHRL.5%  H
2012-13F EALL + B4 ASEMILIN0.2% °

BT BB ER DM R A /K T o SR RERE PSRBT,
{AFA A2 8801ETT (2012-134FE « B2 874187T) o
HFEBEHERR AN ERFTRENZ RS -

ReEfE WA S EMFSEMEER - BEESBE22408
7T (2012-134 % : B2 0608 7T) - HFEE - BE
ZEFENEENAEFARANARAEREIREEM
YRR AFENFEVERSWATTHEL4%EE
¥5,4708 7T (2012134 [F : B¥E5,72087T) -
AFEEREEEYBEREERRANBIWACTEABE
4,0408 T - #IEiE3.6% (2012-134F % : #%3,0008
L) o WEFEXEREREHNEREBERATEIR
BRREERE

HRRRESHEEWRAN (BFE20145F8H3181)

BRNRZEE R

EIE RITEIRA
B (0.3%

& (5.0%

e 10N
#%15.28 &5

@ REBRIBFFERE 2013-2014

HAaYW A (0.8%)
WA14%f\\\
0.5%)
>\
)

(
(
(
K (
(

EhE N ERESA T ERMNERERRXE -
FEBUWAR D 728 4% =B 4808 T (2012-135F ¢

5%%670;%%) - MW AKRBIWAERYE - AR
& ORWIES AR BRAEHEAMKA

HERR2012-13FERBASIABARDEIREELT
2  MEERAFEEARESRALBES 0008 T
(2012-134E E : ##5 0008 7T) Wk - HREEIFTA

WHERBIEASBESEEIRRHES RIS HEE

BEICEERRZT

HH

HKFEEN (17.7%)

/ﬂﬂ}#

(74%)



X

BTIMX BREBRLZEEEFE  BERRERAR
AEEZRIBXHER Hp2ERXEBI2R
EEMME - BB BAERRITH - B RRIZE
B’ RARE  BHEMHUARESRTH -

AEREETRXLEEREF LHH4.3% B EEE
11.71187C (2012-13%F : BEE11.23187T) - BREER
IREEENEMSFELBREE LHAE THMKF
S - BB EBEHAREHNERTR2EAE
BHX LEROEST —HER - FANKEL T ZHHBEE
il - BERPXRENFEER  RAREZSEE
W ARSLE EE AP R RE TR ©

REREI PR EER (BE20145F8A31HIE)

HIE RIRE (4.9%) —

BRERASRE
(7.0%)
WEENY
#%14.60 &5

BB

BEAENERESEATITERFEABRIEERE
ERER  AEEREX R RINAR T H24.4% 4253
T AEEE1 02187 (2012-134EF : #H1E8,20087T) -

HERRERATE  AFEMAXZ EFA20.0% ' B&EA
7E#7,2008 7T (2012-13FF « B¥6,0008 L) ° X
FERZZHIRE  FERBEAY BRETEEMEAR
K EHIREREE -

Hib & BT IR B8 IN3.6% @ BEEESE1 15T
(2012-13FF « B¥E111ERL) - AXEEEZTEZINE
AR EREER LA G - AR AAERRER AR
FREFATE -

H @AY (7.9%)

— B IR RARRR
(80.2%)

HEEBRIBFFERS 2013-2014 @



EEBRERREFZHE

2013145 F - REMBEABRNEFBREELR
o BE201468A31H - BEEILINS.7%EE%20.58
B (2012-13F /& : BH18.761870) - W% - BE
RS EEBB15.51BT  EREETS.4% (2012-134F
& B¥14.0487L) - HEENENESEHEMEER
AR ERIEREERDN2012-13FERK » EAZ TR
W 43.8%E M2 86187 (2012-135FF : BHES5.091E
L) o FEEATHEBEHIN [EEANESHEE
TI#] BX #EE2H [EEREHREE] —F-

HZE2014F8 A3 AR E RF AT E1515.4%18
18- BoRELBEL4.26/87 (2013F8A31H : B
3.6918L) - HhFRHA=EAN ENE S FRILIE
534.8%  HBLEEBEBIA0ET (2012-13FF + B

#230f87L) - AEHFRENMEIEXENEAZHTH
FRELMREZALG  BEATREREEMGKE (BK
4,50087T) ~ RERAIBWALEZEESH (BK
5,700B7T) @ URAFERHBRATENEHRE - &
REEEETREERTREANENAERBRDELEE
BAERL EARBINASEEKERRRELRIEN
MAEHBGEE (FIER [RE] —&) -

RERREERELABEEANMGHE  RERASHE
BRMRAGT A o EEEREEBE1.39ET (2012-13F
€ BM1.59ET) MERBKARENCEREZSHE
MEREATEER - REEBBISHEINOHERES
ERBRE2 4008 TEAREI c EERRNECERE %
RESIEFHESBERELIRZA - ERABBFEB
HEREREBYKAEP TR —TEEEHE -

e —

Bi75%e48 (#=201448H318)

W . GE TREREE 10.6% 75219187
e 754%  BEISSUET :
R | SRREE 12% 2,500 7%
HERBER 207%  BM4260E5T HipEE 259% M5 33MEIT
HihisE 3.9% 78,1008 7T it 62.3% B12.81187T
BE 82058187 BEREE FE£20.5818 7T

RERNSSHEETE (BE2014%F8H3181)

KA K EAM (2.5%)
I (5.6%) ——

B (3.5%) —

TETEEHE
wn2 86 @

@ REBRIBFFERE 2013-2014

Z2 38 (8.0%)

EZEY) (80.4%)



-
- *
W':“w..

53

RE2014-16FEERNEERRIFIVE - MBFHMAR
ABRZ MBAHEEBTERNBUMBET R4

BHEERD -

BT S B B st TR 20134E7 A Ak o IRAFEEH
FIESZEYSRESENEMEN  EEEEF 13X
BERZ © 2014-15%2015-16F E ABEBLE & HRIRE
Fl—&RKFRER - RIZBIRIELAESIN - 1852016
FOAANBF MNEBELENMEINNEBSEI LML
EH17,0000T - EUEEBENED ©E -  EREER
LRAEREREBYH2016F8 A ABAEFIMBAN
RERTFREAVE  THABZERETRUL T EETR
2 REREAER S ENEXTERT B EOTRHE
BE -

BB

RERIZEATRARSHED  HELEEEARK
BFEFEMHNEAREZ — - EFRBEANEB R
BRANAEETEERTIE -KIESMBEZESH
R RERUERTREEE S TRERERR - 86
MREEE T ER 5 AB201558 A E A& R ER
BB UAREARGXREENE  EERERR
AENETHECEERE HAESRAIRENEAESS
Z - BEFFIARNABEERLHHRMARE - MER
REMNEBYHEIORIBE - M EEEEMHRASN2014
FBAMBHE U MED ELEK27{ET - BHRERA
BRAEBNEREER BN LAETEEATIZEREA

HEERREFERE 2013-2014 @



HEHFRBIIHRR

2013-145 8 - HEHER® (ESL) HEERBRAMNRSHE
EPEI1,07087T (2012-13FE  B¥1,51087L) + &
PEBRT ABE2,28087T (2012-135FF « #A¥1,700
8) F MEARHSHAREE3,350& 7T (2012-13
FE BE321087T)

LN

BEINAREERE4.098T (2012-13F F « B¥3.66
BL) - BFEMBEERFEIENNHERZEFIH5.7%%
18 LA R L& T8 T B2 AR B2 B 17 6% G IR AT A SR A BE A8 Uk 25
o AN BEFERT (2012-13%F 1,996 A 5 2013-
1456 E : 2,041 AN) REFHER (2012-13FE : 1,120
A 2013-144FZ 1,243 N) BAEABIENITRFEHESR
WA S —FEERE -

SENEENESFRERBLR LA RREKATE
185.5%IE1E - AEEHNE REE KBS 8008 T
(2012-13%FfZ : BUE5500877T) °

Hip 2 EWARTH14%=8%2,4008 7T (2012-134F
[ : B¥2,80087T) - WATHERZIKREES AR
R RWMARFERTE - A 2B R ANRERE SR
HeBA  HEE - BUE BESRYHRAEERA - F
BWALAR SETEBIUA -

FEBURABEIAREZERR - ARERMERNE
FERMREERAENAERE - MBEWRASHEEE
6% = 13,4008 7T (2012-13F [F : B¥E3,20087T) °

2t

REEETHRAXIEMI1%EHBE3.68(87T (2012-134F
€ - B¥3.3287L) c AXERIEXIIMAEAERMF
£ PRAE—TIHRBLEFEIMEBAT  UEREE
BT IN$r3.5% - SREPAEIE S HARILINI33% -
B HSFEBKT008 T (2012-13FF : BH3008
o) c BIBTEXITHTEEARNTIZERKARN2013-
14FEFRBBEN LTS -

@ REBRIBFFERE 2013-2014

' ] Dog Food

/ | POP (Protect Oury ) s

ke ¥/ || Kristen Van den A
¥, ,"l | ' Lauren .”;;;.ms Berg

{ / ? Mad

die Mexted '\'& :

RIEREHE RS EBUTRT MRS - REHE RS
BEABNHLEE I EREBBWALEN10%  RNEEF
BAERSLRBEEES R EMYRER - AFER it
BRZHMBESTNRSEAEK3,4008 7L (2012-134F
€ BHE3,00087T) - BiE2014F8H31H » BFER K&
BHEREEES K BERINES D B ABE2,1008 T
7008 TT -

RE

BERHER REBPHERE2014-16FE M AE AHTE
HIS RIS IR - TRRT S BB R F U ABURAE B 0
HEAHBR2017-18F ZEE M - MATHLE B BRA
FERRAFEIEARE  BERMELOTHEER -
ERRAR - EHMREHERBEMSEE (BEHER
EE MRERIE) SEEAEEE MM LERIZERR

BIRRMEIEEATRERTAENERAECENSH
BAEl - ARSIR2016-17FEERNBE M ER T/ NEX
B LMTRABSERERESZEESHRREHRE &
TREERFRSRHE MEBLBREA (BEFTED
REBANRERENIREGE) @ UWRERESRIHEEK
B STk -




The English Schools Foundation
EARBRIE

Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 August 2014

HEERREFERE 2013-2014 @



The English Schools Foundation
Year ended 31 August 2014

Report of the Board of Governors

The Board of Governors (“the Board”) have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 August
2014.

Principal place of business

The English Schools Foundation (“the Foundation”) is a subvented organisation
incorporated in Hong Kong under The English Schools Foundation Ordinance and has its
office and principal place of business at 25/F, 1063 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Foundation and its subsidiary (“the Group”) is to own,
manage, administer and operate schools to provide a modern liberal education through
the medium of English language. In note 2(d), the Group sets out the principal activities
and other particulars of the Foundation’s subsidiary. The Foundation and its subsidiary
are exempt from taxation pursuant to section 88 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

Financial statements

The surplus of the Group for the year ended 31 August 2014 and the state of the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 5 to 55.

Transfer to reserves

The Group has transferred the surplus for the year of HK$108,626,000 (2013:
HK$164,204,000) to reserves.

At 31 August 2014, the Group's reserves amounted to HKS$1,305,025,000 (2013:
HK$1,187,049,000), being the excess of assets over liabilities. The Group sets out details
of the reserves in note 21 and the statement of changes in reserves.

Under the terms of The English Schools Foundation Ordinance, no dividend or bonus
whatsoever can be paid and no gift or division of money or any property whatsoever can
be made by or on behalf of the Foundation to any of the officers or employees of the
Foundation, any of the members of the Board or any of the students of the schools of the
Foundation except by way of prize, reward or special grant or in the case of an employee
of the Foundation, by way of a dividend or bonus payable under a contract of
employment.

@ EEERREFERE 2013-2014



The English Schools Foundation
Year ended 31 August 2014

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment include properties, leasehold improvements, furniture
and equipment of the Group’s schools, office and residential properties. At 31 August
2014, the net book value of the properties, plant and equipment was HK$1,609,837,000
(2013: HK$1,454,492,000) and the depreciation charge for the year then ended was
HK$111,167,000 (2013: HK$86,440,000), respectively; see note 6 to the financial
statements for details of movements in properties, plant and equipment.

Members of the Board

The members of the Board during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

Carlson Tong (Chairman)
Elizabeth Bosher (Vice-chairman)
Robert Gazzi (Treasurer)
Alexander Chan

Andrea Lowe

Judy Woo

Kim Anderson

Marc Castagnet

Matthew Caplin

Mike Draeger

P M Kam

Paul Clarke

Pauline Ng

Brenda Cook (elected by the Committee of Principals on
18 August 2014)

Connie Liu (elected by parents of students of schools of the
Foundation, Renaissance College and Discovery
College on 26 November 2013)

Elaine Leung (elected by the Committee of School Council
Chairmen on 2 January 2014)

Francis Carroll (elected by parents of students of schools of the
Foundation, Renaissance College and Discovery
College on 26 November 2013)

Judy Vas (elected by the Committee of School Council
Chairmen on 24 September 2014)

Kelvin Wong (nominated by the Nominating Committee on
17 January 2014)

Kumar Ramanathan (nominated by the Nominating Committee on
29 October 2014)

Nirmala Rao (nominated by the Nominating Committee on
17 January 2014)

Ronald Abbott (elected by parents of students of schools of the

Foundation, Renaissance College and Discovery
College on 24 September 2014)
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The English Schools Foundation
Year ended 31 August 2014

Members of the Board (continued)

The members of the Board during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

(continued)

Scarlett Mattoli

Schumann Tang

Virginia Morris

Amy Wong
Gordon Lamb
Jane Foxcroft
Kim Mak
Kyran Sze
Michael Dowie
Paul Varty
Simon Joyce
Simon Osborne
Vincent Ho
Virginia Wilson
Belinda Greer
(Chief Executive Officer, ex officio)

(elected by parents of students of schools of the
Foundation, Renaissance College and Discovery
College on 24 September 2014)

(elected by parents of students of schools of the
Foundation, Renaissance College and Discovery
College on 24 September 2014)

(elected by the Committee of School Council
Chairmen on 24 September 2014)

(resigned on 23 October 2013)

(resigned on 19 September 2014)

(resigned on 17 August 2014)

(resigned on 27 October 2014)

(resigned on 14 December 2013)

(resigned on 27 November 2013)

(resigned on 5 September 2014)

(resigned on 12 April 2014)

(resigned on 27 March 2014)

(resigned on 19 April 2014)

(resigned on 31 December 2013)

(appointed on 1 September 2013)

The term of office of a member, other than an ex officio member, shall be 3 years. A
member is eligible for re-nomination or re-election at the expiry of his term as a member,
but a person shall not serve as a member consecutively for more than 2 terms.

At no time during the year was the Group a party to any arrangement to enable the
members of the Board to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of interest in the

Group or any other body corporate.
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The English Schools Foundation
Year ended 31 August 2014

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Foundation has been proposed.

By order of the Board
Carlson Tong
Chairman

Hong Kong,

11 December 2014
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 August 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Income
Operating income

Government grants

Tuition fees

Programme income

Rental income

Donations

Interest income

Income from subsidiary

- From Development and
Operating Agreement

- Management and
administrative income

- Transfer from previous
years’ scholarship fund
and hardship allowance
surplus

Miscellaneous income

Non-operating income
Nomination rights

Non-refundable building
levy

Total income

@ EEERREFERE 2013-2014

The English Schools Foundation

Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

The Group The Foundation
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated)
15 271,112 271,117 271,112 271,117
1,538,858 1,443,056 1,129,730 1,077,210
58,166 54,967 - -
75,976 77,138 77,128 77,835
4,925 8,035 4,338 7,587
5,086 7,101 4,757 6,650
- - 21,241 20,233
- - 7,889 7,720
16 1,310 5,063 - -
22,067 18,046 11,347 6,731
1,977,500 1,884,523 1,527,542 1,475,083
21(a)

44,917 67,790 30,717 49,500
19,310 13,883 - -
64,227 81,673 30,717 49,500
2,041,727 1,966,196 1,558,259 1,524,583
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 August 2014 (continued)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group The Foundation
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated)
Expenditure
Staff expenses
Basic salaries
- Professional 894,826 849,053 673,781 646,778
= Other staff 255,270 241,660 194,018 185,918
Gratuities and allowances 331,753 315,906 255,382 249,583
Accommodation 18,901 15,811 18,901 15,811
Medical expenses 34,447 28,526 26,721 22,449
Passage and other
allowances 3,196 3,237 2,763 2,423
3(a) 1,538,393 1,454,193 1,171,566 1,122,962
Other expenses
Depreciation on schools
and offices 109,172 84,544 101,669 81,161
Repairs and maintenance 85,176 72,368 72,249 60,021
Other operating expenses 4 166,731 161,022 114,844 111,377
Scholarship fund and
hardship allowance 16 33,629 29,865 - -
394,708 347,799 288,762 252,559
Total expenses 1,933,101 1,801,992 1,460,328 1,375,521
Surplus for the year 3 108,626 164,204 97,931 149,062
Other comprehensive
income for the year
Item that will not be
reclassified to surplus or
deficit:
Remeasurement of net
defined benefit asset 7(b)(v) 9,350 23,468 9,350 23,468
Total comprehensive
income for the year 117,976 187,672 107,281 172,530
6
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 August 2014 (continued)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group The Foundation

Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated)

Represented by:
Operating surplus 53,749 105,999 76,564 123,030
Capital fund surplus 64,227 81,673 30,717 49,500
117,976 187,672 107,281 172,530

The notes on pages 14 to 55 form part of these financial statements. Restatements in
relation to revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits are detailed in note 2(c).
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Balance sheet as at 31 August 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group The Foundation
31 August 31 August 1 September 31 August 31 August 1 September
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

Non-current assets

Properties, plant and equipment 6 1,609,837 1,454,492 1,078,953 1,551,332 1,403,881 1,059,174
Defined benefit retirement scheme 7 49,848 44,722 27,610 49,848 44,722 27,610
1,659,685 1,499,214 1,106,563 1,601,180 1,448,603 1,086,784
Current assets 8
Inventories 777 638 655 - - -
Rental, utility and other deposits 10,580 10,257 9,444 6,874 7,095 6,556
Prepayments 13,457 13,054 11,662 8,314 9,191 7,249
Loans to staff 4,667 7,117 5,770 3,183 5,138 3,652
Fees and other receivables 9 6,078 2,956 4,341 4,930 1,926 3,381
Government grants receivable 7,040 40,908 14,693 7,040 35,314 8,421
Amount due from subsidiary 10 - - - - - 2,721
Restricted cash 11 1,826 1,532 1,532 - - -
Deposits with original maturities
over three months 312,412 231,984 323,069 310,312 230,084 321,169
Cash and cash equivalents 12 207,040 223,684 223,375 116,414 138,508 106,939
563,877 532,130 594,541 457,067 427,256 460,088
Current liabilities 8
Fees received in advance 154,202 165,130 172,881 76,856 90,364 98,810
Nomination rights received in
advance 5,810 2,910 950 4,500 2,600 -
Amount due to subsidiary 10 - - - 35,280 27,104 -
Provision to meet staff conditions
of service 13 88,282 88,238 85,206 69,932 73,168 69,900
Accounts payables and accruals 14 352,977 341,073 244,029 309,691 299,469 219,889
Government hardship allowance 15(b) 34,160 35,622 37,294 34,160 35,622 37,294
Scholarship fund and hardship
allowance 16 28,076 33,374 41,761 - - -
Current portion of obligations
under finance leases 17 738 133 218 738 133 218
Current portion of refundable
debenture 19 4,123 - - - - -
Current portion of corporate
nomination rights 20 250 - - 250 - -
668,618 666,480 582,339 531,407 528,460 426,111
Net current (liabilities)/assets (104,741) (134,350) 12,202 (74,340) (101,204) 33,977
Total assets less current
liabilities 1,554,944 1,364,864 1,118,765 1,526,840 1,347,399 1,120,761
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Balance sheet as at 31 August 2014 (continued)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group The Foundation
31 August 31 August 1 September 31 August 31 August 1 September
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
Non-current liabilities

Obligations under finance leases 17 2,214 33 166 2,214 33 166
Refundable capital levy 18 218,859 173,463 119,222 218,859 173,463 119,222
Refundable debenture 19 4,263 4,319 - - - -
Corporate nomination rights 20 24,583 - - 24,583 - -
249,919 177,815 119,388 245,656 173,496 119,388
NET ASSETS 1,305,025 1,187,049 999,377 1,281,184 1,173,903 1,001,373

RESERVES 21
General reserve 1,005,368 931,675 859,843 1,062,075 965,567 876,704
Capital fund 160,765 96,538 14,865 80,217 49,500 -
Schools reserves 138,892 158,836 124,669 138,892 158,836 124,669
1,305,025 1,187,049 999,377 1,281,184 1,173,903 1,001,373

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Governors on 11 December 2014

Carlson Tong
Members of the Board of Governors
Robert Gazzi

N’ N N N N N

The notes on pages 14 to 55 form part of these financial statements. Restatements in
relation to revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits are detailed in note 2(c).
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Statement of changes in reserves

for the year ended 31 August 2014
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group
General Capital Schools
reserve fund reserves Total
(note 21(a))  (note 21(b))
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
As previously reported at 1 September
2012 862,364 14,865 124,669 1,001,898
Impact of change in accounting policy (2,521) - - (2,521)
Restated balance at 1 September 2012 859,843 14,865 124,669 999,377
Surplus for the year (restated) 28,469 81,673 54,062 164,204
Transfers 19,895 - (19,895) -
Other comprehensive income (restated) 23,468 - - 23,468
Total comprehensive income (restated) 71,832 81,673 34,167 187,672
Restated balance at 31 August 2013 and
1 September 2013 931,675 96,538 158,836 1,187,049
Surplus for the year (14,587) 64,227 58,986 108,626
Transfers 78,930 - (78,930) -
Other comprehensive income 9,350 - - 9,350
Total comprehensive income 73,693 64,227 (19,944) 117,976
At 31 August 2014 1,005,368 160,765 138,892 1,305,025
10
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Statement of changes in reserves

for the year ended 31 August 2014 (continued)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Foundation
General Capital Schools
reserve fund reserves Total
(note 21(a))  (note 21(b))
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
As previously reported at 1 September
2012 879,225 - 124,669 1,003,894
Impact of change in accounting policy (2,521) - - (2,521)
Restated balance at 1 September 2012 876,704 - 124,669 1,001,373
Surplus for the year (restated) 45,500 49,500 54,062 149,062
Transfers 19,895 - (19,895) -
Other comprehensive income (restated) 23,468 - - 23,468
Total comprehensive income (restated) 88,863 49,500 34,167 172,530
Restated balance at 31 August 2013 and
1 September 2013 965,567 49,500 158,836 1,173,903
Surplus for the year 8,228 30,717 58,986 97,931
Transfers 78,930 - (78,930) -
Other comprehensive income 9,350 - - 9,350
Total comprehensive income 96,508 30,717 (19,944) 107,281
At 31 August 2014 1,062,075 80,217 138,892 1,281,184

The notes on pages 14 to 55 form part of these financial statements. Restatements in

relation to revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits are detailed in note 2(c).
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Cash flow statement

The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

for the year ended 31 August 2014

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group The Foundation
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated)
Operating activities
Net cash generated from
operating activities 12(b) 149,009 204,664 159,374 261,835
Investing activities
Payments for the purchase of
properties, plant and
equipment less capital
creditors (293,222) (495,574) (270,615) (484,504)
Proceeds from sale of
properties, plant and
equipment 10 - - -
(Increase)/decrease in bank
deposits with original
maturities over three months (80,428) 91,085 (80,228) 91,085
Government grants received 62,236 51,077 62,236 50,399
Increase in deposits pledged
with bank (294) - - -
Interest received 5,086 7,101 4,757 6,650
Net cash used in investing
activities (306,612) (346,311) (283,850) (336,370)
Financing activities
Increase in refundable capital
levy 45,396 54,241 45,396 54,241
Proceeds from issue of
nomination rights 72,650 69,750 57,450 52,100
Proceeds from non-refundable
building levy 19,310 13,883 - -
Proceeds from refundable
debenture 4,067 4,319 - -
Capital element of finance
lease rentals paid (405) (218) (405) (218)
Interest element of finance
lease rentals paid (59) (19) (59) (19)
Net cash generated from
financing activities 140,959 141,956 102,382 106,104
12
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Cash flow statement

The English Schools Foundation

Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

for the year ended 31 August 2014 (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

The Group The Foundation
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated)
Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents (16,644) 309 (22,094) 31,569
Cash and cash equivalents at
1 September 223,684 223,375 138,508 106,939
Cash and cash equivalents at
31 August 12(a) 207,040 223,684 116,414 138,508

The notes on pages 14 to 55 form part of these financial statements. Restatements in
relation to revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits are detailed in note 2(c).
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Notes to the financial statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Background

The English Schools Foundation (“the Foundation™) is incorporated in Hong Kong under
The English Schools Foundation Ordinance. The Foundation has a wholly owned
subsidiary, ESF Educational Services Limited (“ESL”) (together referred to as “the
Group”). The Board of Governors of the Foundation (“the Board”) is responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements.

The principal activity of the Group is to own, manage, administer and operate schools to
provide a modern liberal education through the medium of English language. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Foundation’s subsidiary are set out in
note 2(d) to the financial statements.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014 comprise the
Foundation and its subsidiary.

The Board has prepared the consolidated financial statements to comply with the
requirements under The English Schools Foundation Ordinance and The English Schools
Foundation (General) Regulation and in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting year. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting year (see note 27).

14
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The Group uses the historical cost basis to prepare the financial statements.

In order to prepare financial statements that comply with HKFRSs the Group has to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The Group believes the estimates and
associated assumptions, which the Group makes based on historical experience and
various other factors, are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The Group reviews the estimates and underlying assumptions on an ongoing basis. The
Group recognises revisions to accounting estimates in the year the Group revises the
estimate if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both current and future years.

During the year ended 31 August 2013, the Group has revised the estimated useful lives
of buildings and building improvements (see note 6(1)).

In note 26, the Group discusses the significant judgements the Group made in applying
HKFRSs on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the Foundation. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

-  Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income

-  HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
-  Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items of other comprehensive
income that would be reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are
met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of
other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
these financial statements has been modified accordingly.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
statements relating to the preparation of consolidated financial statements and Hong
Kong (SIC) Interpretation 12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. 1t introduces a
single control model to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns. As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has control over an
investee. The adoption does not change any of the control conclusions reached by the
Group in respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1 September 2013.

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

Revised HKAS 19 introduces a number of amendments to the accounting for defined
benefit plans. Among them, revised HKAS 19 eliminates the “corridor method” under
which the recognition of actuarial gains and losses relating to defined benefit schemes
could be deferred and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the
expected average remaining service lives of employees. Under the revised standard, all
actuarial gains and losses are required to be recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income. Revised HKAS 19 also changed the basis for determining
income from plan assets from expected return to interest income calculated at the liability
discount rate, and requires immediate recognition of past service cost, whether vested or
not.

As a result of the adoption of revised HKAS 19, the Group has changed its accounting
policy with respect to defined benefit plans, for which the corridor method was
previously applied. This change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively by
restating the balances at 1 September 2012 and 31 August 2013, with consequential
adjustments to comparatives for the year ended 31 August 2013 as follows:

Effect of
adoption of
As previously revised
reported HKAS 19 As restated
$°000 $°000 $°000
Consolidated income and expenditure
account for year ended 31 August 2013:
Net defined benefit retirement scheme expenses 1,978 (8,334) (6,356)
Surplus for the year 172,538 (8,334) 164,204

16

HEERREFERE 2013-2014 Q



The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits (continued)

Effect of
adoption of
As previously revised
reported HKAS 19 As restated
$°000 $°000 $°000
Consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for year ended 31 August 2013:
Remeasurement of net defined benefit asset - 23,468 23,468
Other comprehensive income for the year - 23,468 23,468
Total comprehensive income for the year 172,538 15,134 187,672
Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 August 2013:
Defined benefit retirement scheme 32,109 12,613 44,722
Total non-current assets 1,486,601 12,613 1,499,214
Net assets 1,174,436 12,613 1,187,049
General reserve 919,062 12,613 931,675
Consolidated balance sheet
as at 1 September 2012:
Defined benefit retirement scheme 30,131 (2,521) 27,610
Total non-current assets 1,109,084 (2,521) 1,106,563
Net assets 1,001,898 (2,521) 999,377
General reserve 862,364 (2,521) 859,843

(d) Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

The Group consolidates a subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Subsidiary (continued)

ESL, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee, is a controlled
subsidiary of the Group. Its activities are the operation of four kindergartens and two
private independent schools, the provision of English as an Additional Language (EAL)
courses and sports activities for young people. The management expertise and
administration of ESL are substantially provided by the Foundation.

In the Foundation’s balance sheet, the amounts due to ESL are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 10).

(e) Income recognition

The Group measures income at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the income
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, the Group recognises income as
follows:

(1) Government grants

The Group recognises government grants when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be
received. The Group recognises grants relating to expenditure on a systematic basis in
the same year in which the related expenditure is incurred. The Group deducts grants
provided to the Group relating to properties, plant and equipment from the cost of
acquisition in arriving at the carrying amount of the related asset.

(i1) Tuition fees

For an academic year which ends within the financial year, the Group recognises tuition
fees when they are receivable.

The Group classifies tuition fees received in respect of the following academic year as
fees received in advance and the Group carries these in the balance sheet as liabilities at
the end of the financial year.

(iii))  Programme income

The Group recognises programme income on an accruals basis in respect of programmes
provided; unearned programme fees are treated as fees received in advance.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Income recognition (continued)
(iv)  Rental income

The Group recognises rental income, which is income earned from the licensing use of
school facilities and other properties on an accruals basis.

(v) Donations

The Group recognises donations when the Group becomes entitled to the donations and it
is probable that they will be received. The Group recognises donations relating to
expenditure on a systematic basis in the same year in which the related expenditure is
incurred. The Group recognises donations that compensate for the cost of an asset as
deferred income that is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the useful life
of the related asset.

(vi)  Interest income
The Group recognises interest income as it accrues using the effective interest method.
(vii)  Resale income

The Group uses an accruals basis to recognise resale income that represents income
earned from selling textbooks, stationery and school uniforms.

(viii) Individual nomination rights

The Group recognises deposits made in respect of individual nomination rights as receipt
in advance and transfer them to income when offers are made. The Group recognises the
remaining balance from the sale of individual nomination rights when the rights are
exercised for the acceptance of school place offers, which is generally on receipt of cash.

(ix)  Corporate nomination rights

The Foundation recognises receipt of cash made in respect of corporate nomination rights
as liabilities and amortises to income when the holder of the corporate nomination rights
notifies the Foundation the first nominee under the terms and conditions of the corporate
nomination rights scheme.

(x) Non-refundable building levy

The Group recognises non-refundable building levy income when it is probable that the
levy will be received, which is generally on receipt of cash.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Properties, plant and equipment

The Group records properties, plant and equipment other than construction in progress in
the balance sheet at cost less related government grants, accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(g)).

The Group records construction in progress at cost less related government grants, and is
transferred to other categories of properties, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed. The
Group charges depreciation that is designed to write off the cost of properties, plant and
equipment, less related government grants to their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

-  Buildings 20 - 50 years
-  Building improvements 10 - 20 years
-  Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease term or useful life
- Computer equipment 3 -5 years
-  Furniture and other equipment 5-10 years

Annually the Group reviews the estimated life of the assets and the estimates of residual
value. The Group states construction in progress at cost and it is not subject to any
depreciation charge.

The Group adds subsequent expenditure relating to properties, plant and equipment that
the Group has already recognised to the carrying amount of the asset provided the Group
considers that it is probable that the Group will obtain future economic benefits, in excess
of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, from the
expenditure. All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the year in
which it is incurred.

On the date of the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the
Group recognises the related gains and losses being the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(8 Impairment of assets

The Group uses internal and external sources of information at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that properties, plant and equipment may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount and
recognise an impairment loss if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable). In assessing value in use, the Group
discounts the estimated future cash flows to their present value using a discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the Group determines the recoverable amount for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

The Group reverses an impairment loss if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. The Group credits reversals of
impairment losses as income in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

h) Leased assets

Under HKFRSs an arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. The Group
determines whether the Group is a party to a lease based on the substance of the
arrangement regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

The Group classifies assets held under leases which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership as being held under finance leases. The Group classifies other
leases as operating leases.

(1) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the Group includes the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased assets, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments of such assets in properties, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, as obligations under finance leases.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
Assets acquired under finance leases (continued)

The Group charges depreciation at rates which write off the cost of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f). The Group accounts for impairment
losses in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 2(g).

The Group charges as an expense the finance charges implicit in the lease payments over
the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge
on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting year.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, the Group expenses
payments made under the leases in equal instalments over the accounting years covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. The Group recognises lease incentives
received as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.

Inventories

The Group carries inventories that consist of uniforms held for resale at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

The Group calculates cost using the first-in-first-out method and comprise all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the Group’s estimate of selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the Group recognises the carrying amount of those inventories
as an expense in the year in which the related income is recognised. The Group
recognises the amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories as an expense in the year the write-down or loss occurs and the
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the year in which the reversal occurs.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Gg) Fees and other receivables

Initially the Group recognises fees and other receivables at fair value, thereafter the
Group states these at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts. Where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, the Group states the receivables at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.

The Group calculates the allowance for impairment of doubtful debts as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows,
discounted where the effect of discounting is material.

(k) Accounts and other payables

Initially the Group recognises accounts and other payables at fair value, subsequently the
Group states these at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement.

(m)  Corporate nomination rights

The corporate nomination rights (“CNR”) scheme entitles the holder of the CNR (the
“Holder”) to identify one nominee in relation to any CNR at any time according to the
terms and conditions of the CNR. The CNR is non-transferrable, interest-free,
depreciating and unsecured.

Each CNR is redeemable at the date 20 years following the first nomination date for that
CNR at zero value. The Holder may redeem a CNR at any date following 10 years after
the first nomination date for that CNR. The redeemable amount is the remaining value of
that CNR at the date of redemption. Initially the Foundation recognises the CNR at fair
value, subsequently the Foundation states this at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case it is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(n)  Refundable capital levy

Refundable capital levy is repayable by the Group when the student leaves the school.
The refundable capital levy is non-transferable, interest-free, non-depreciating and
unsecured. Initially the Group recognises the refundable capital levy at fair value,
subsequently the Group states this at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case it is stated at cost.

(o) Refundable debenture

Refundable debenture is repayable by the Group when the student of a kindergarten
leaves the school with sufficient notice. The refundable debenture is non-transferable,
interest-free, non-depreciating and unsecured. Initially the Group recognises the
refundable debenture at fair value, thereafter the Group states this at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case it is stated at cost.

(p)  Employee benefits

(1) The Group accrues salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, leave passage and the cost to
the Group of non-monetary benefits in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, the Group states these amounts at their present values.

(1)  The Group recognises as expense obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes, including contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, as they are incurred.

(i)  The Group calculates the Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
schemes separately for each scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior years; the Group
discounts that benefit to determine the present value, and the fair value of any scheme
assets is deducted. A qualified actuary performs the calculation using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the Group
recognises asset limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
1)) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii))  (continued)

The Group recognises service cost and net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) in the statement of comprehensive income. The Group measures
current service cost as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan are
changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the Group recognises the portion of the changed
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive income at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination
benefits are recognised. The Group determines net interest expense (income) for the
period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the year to the net defined benefit liability (asset). The discount rate is the
yield at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.

The Group recognises remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans in
other comprehensive income and reflected immediately in retained earnings.
Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any
change in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)).

(q9) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the Group can make a reliable estimate. Where the time value of money is material, the
Group states provisions at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the Group discloses the obligation as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote, the Group also discloses as
contingent liabilities possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that
person:

(1)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii1) 1s a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same Group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(ii1) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3 Surplus for the year

Surplus for the year is arrived at after charging:

(a) Staff costs

Contribution to defined
contribution retirement
schemes

Net defined benefit
retirement schemes
expenses

Retirement costs
Salaries, wages and other
benefits

) Other items

Depreciation

Loss on disposals of
properties, plant and
equipment

Operating lease charges:

- equipment rentals

- property rentals

EEERREFERE 2013-2014

Note

7(0)(v)

AN

The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated)
30,476 27,652 22,602 20,547
4,224 6,356 4,224 6,356
34,700 34,008 26,826 26,903
1,503,693 1,420,185 1,144,740 1,096,059
1,538,393 1,454,193 1,171,566 1,122,962
111,167 86,440 103,664 83,057
4,407 1,457 4,339 1,457
251 238 251 238
17,599 17,406 10,002 11,020
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Other operating expenses

The Group The Foundation
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Audit fees 1,085 937 906 755
Cost of goods sold 1,190 1,289 - -
Finance lease interest
expenses 59 19 59 19
Impairment loss of fees and
other receivables 685 1,246 685 892
Information technology
expenses 18,738 16,606 14,426 13,206
Insurance 5,096 4,628 3,715 3,339
Leased equipment rentals 3(b) 251 238 251 238
Legal and professional fees 3,083 3,432 1,796 2,259
Library 1,951 1,822 1,379 1,382
Net government rent and
rates 15(c) 1,338 982 753 502
Professional development
and training 16,175 16,656 13,424 13,332
Property rentals 3(b) 17,599 17,406 10,002 11,020
Property management fee 2,900 2,860 1,724 1,724
Public relations and
marketing expenses 2,075 3,127 746 1,224
Printing and stationery 8,615 8,212 6,367 6,296
Recruitment expenses 5,396 6,641 4,486 5,415
Teaching resources and
materials 33,499 30,982 19,875 18,360
Utilities 29,296 26,437 21,328 19,095
General expenses 17,700 17,502 12,922 12,319
166,731 161,022 114,844 111,377
Taxation

The Foundation and ESL are exempted from taxation pursuant to section 88 of the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

6 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

(c) King George V, Kowloon Junior, Peak, Glenealy, Kennedy and Quarry Bay schools were
transferred to the Group and the Foundation on 1 September 1979 at nil book value.
Additions to properties, plant and equipment of these schools since that date are included
in the financial statements.

d) The Group’s and the Foundation’s schools are built on sites provided by the Government
(either free of premium or nominal premium) on education leases which impose certain
restrictions on use. All the leases run until 2047 or later, except for Renaissance College
and Discovery College, which are on temporary leases renewable until the lease is
terminated by the Government.

(e) Residential properties

The Group and the Foundation own 202 (2013: 202) housing units which are used as staff
quarters or leased to third parties.

The Board has reviewed the residential property portfolio. Non-assignment clauses
contained in the Conditions of Grants for the 87 units of Braemar Heights prevent their
sale on the open market. An independent firm of surveyors, Colliers, valued the 115
remaining property units owned by the Group and the Foundation as at 31 August 2014 at
$2,677,640,000 (2013: $2,551,520,000). The net book value of the 115 remaining
property units as at 31 August 2014 was $41,041,000 (2013: $17,094,000).

1)) Mortgage of residential properties for banking facilities

The banking facilities of the Group and the Foundation granted by The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited are secured by mortgages over 12 residential
properties with net book value of $1,791,000 at 31 August 2014 (2013: 12 residential
properties with net book value of $2,149,000). The market value of the 12 residential
properties as at 31 August 2014 based on external valuations was $167,100,000 (2013:
$146,900,000).

(2) Equipment held under finance leases

The Group and the Foundation have acquired office equipment under finance leases with
terms ranging from two to five years. At the end of the lease term the Group and the
Foundation have options to purchase the equipment at a price deemed to be a bargain
purchase option.

The net book value of equipment held under finance leases as at 31 August 2014 was
$3,313,000 (2013: $248,000) and the depreciation charge for the year ended 31 August
2014 was $121,000 (2013: $124,000).
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

6 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
(h)  Renaissance College and Discovery College

The Government approved applications to construct and operate non-profit making
private independent schools in Ma On Shan in 2000 and in Discovery Bay in 2001 and
signed service agreements with ESL relating to the school in Ma On Shan on 23 August
2004 and in relation to the school in Discovery Bay on 30 May 2006.

Subsequently, pursuant to a Development and Operating Agreement dated 23 August
2006, the Foundation undertook to construct, fit out and complete Renaissance College
(“RCHK?”) and Discovery College (“DC”) in order for ESL to operate RCHK and DC. In
consideration for the construction costs incurred by the Foundation, it was agreed that
ESL would pay a fee from income generated by RCHK and DC to the Foundation. The
Foundation would bear any construction cost over and above the Government capital
grants received for RCHK and DC.

At the ESL directors’ meeting held on 21 May 2012, it was proposed and endorsed that
RCHK and DC would pay for their own capital expenditure with effect from 1 July 2012.
Any related depreciation charge on this capital expenditure would be recorded in the
books of ESL. The proposal was agreed and ratified by the Board of Governors of the
Foundation on 13 December 2012.

During the year, the Foundation’s expenditure on properties, plant and equipment and
depreciation charge for the year for RCHK and DC amounted to $9,020,000 (2013: $nil)
and $10,170,000 (2013: $12,963,000), respectively.

Total cost of properties, plant and equipment and the net book value (net of related
government grants and depreciation) of RCHK and DC at 31 August 2014 included in the
financial statements of the Foundation was $476,599,000 (2013: $472,803,000) and
$181,659,000 (2013: $184,441,000), respectively.

(@) Review of the estimated useful lives of properties, plant and equipment

During a review in the year ended 31 August 2013 of the Group’s depreciation policies,
the Group revised the estimated useful lives of assets listed below with effect from 1
September 2012 and applied component accounting, where applicable. The changes in
estimated useful lives were based on historical experience and management considered
that the revised estimated useful lives better reflect the estimated periods during which
such assets would remain in service and be utilised by the Group and the Foundation:

Previous Revised
estimated estimated
useful life useful life

Buildings 20 years 20 - 50 years
Building improvements 10 years 10 - 20 years
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

6 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
(i) Review of the estimated useful lives of properties, plant and equipment (continued)

The adoption of the new estimated useful lives had no effect on prior years. The effect on
the year ended 31 August 2013 was to decrease the depreciation charge by $40,503,000
and increase the carrying value of the assets as at 31 August 2013 by the same amount.
The Group considered it was impracticable to estimate the effect of the revised useful
lives on future years depreciation charge.

7 Retirement schemes
(a) The Group and the Foundation operates three employee retirement schemes for staff:
(1) the Senior Staff and Teaching Staff Elective Provident Fund;

(i1) the Non-Teaching Staff Superannuation Scheme (the “NT Scheme”), eligible staff are
non-teaching staff employed before 19 January 2000 under the conditions of service
applicable before that date; and

(iii))  the Terminal Award Scheme (the “TA Scheme”), eligible staff are teaching and senior
staff employed before 1 September 1988.

The Senior Staff and Teaching Staff Elective Provident Fund is a defined contribution
retirement scheme, therefore once contributions are made no further liability accrues to
the Group and the Foundation. The other two schemes are defined benefit retirement
schemes funded by contributions from the Group and the Foundation in accordance with
an independent actuary’s recommendation based on annual actuarial valuations.

(b) Defined benefit retirement schemes

(1) The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follows:
The Group and the Foundation
2014 2013
$°000 $°000
(restated)
Present value of defined benefit obligations (87,630) (90,687)
Fair value of scheme assets 137,478 135,409
49,848 44,722
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Retirement schemes (continued)
Defined benefit retirement schemes (continued)
(continued)

The Group and the Foundation expect that a portion of the above defined benefit
retirement schemes assets will be recovered within one year. However, it is not
practicable to segregate this amount from the amounts recoverable in later periods, as
future contributions will relate to future services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions. Accordingly, the Group and the Foundation have
recorded the assets as non-current assets.

The Group and the Foundation do not expect to make any contribution to the schemes in
the year ending 31 August 2015.

Scheme assets for each of the TA Scheme and the NT Scheme consist of the following:

The Group and the Foundation

TA Scheme NT Scheme
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Equities 14,313 12,412 56,059 52,727
Fixed income securities 18,145 17,615 46,753 49,360
Cash 568 738 1,640 2,557
Total 33,026 30,765 104,452 104,644
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7 Retirement schemes (continued)
(b) Defined benefit retirement schemes (continued)

(iii))  Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

The Group and the Foundation

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
(restated)
At 1 September (90,687) (113,330)
Remeasurements:
- Actuarial gain arising from changes in
experience 1,777 1,762
- Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from changes in
financial assumptions (3,687) 12,791
(1,910) 14,553
Current service cost (4,244) (5,550)
Interest cost (2,085) (726)
Less: actual benefits paid and payable 11,296 14,366
At 31 August (87,630) (90,687)

(iv)  Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

The Group and the Foundation

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
(restated)
At 1 September 135,409 140,940
Interest income 2,902 811
Return on scheme assets, excluding interest
income 11,260 8,915
Less: actual benefits paid and payable (11,296) (14,366)
Less: administrative expenses paid from scheme
assets (797) (891)
At 31 August 137,478 135,409
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Retirement schemes (continued)
Defined benefit retirement schemes (continued)

Income recognised in the statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

The Group and the Foundation

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
(restated)
Current service cost 4,244 5,550
Net interest on net defined benefit asset (817) (85)
Administrative expenses paid from scheme assets 797 891
Total amounts recognised in income and
expenditure 4,224 6,356
Actuarial loss/(gain) 1,910 (14,553)
Return on scheme assets, excluding interest
income (11,260) (8,915)
Total amounts recognised
in other comprehensive income (9,350) (23,468)
Total defined benefit return (5,126) (17,112)

The Group and the Foundation include the current service cost, net interest on net defined
benefit asset and administrative expenses paid from scheme assets under gratuities and
allowances in the statement of comprehensive income.
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7 Retirement schemes (continued)
(b) Defined benefit retirement schemes (continued)

(vi)  Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are as follows:

The Group and the Foundation

TA Scheme NT Scheme
2014 2013 2014 2013
Discount rate 1.1% 1.3% 1.8% 2.4%
Future salary increases 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligation as at 31 August 2014 would
have increased (decreased) as a result of 0.25% change in the significant actuarial

assumptions:
The Group and the Foundation
TA Scheme NT Scheme
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
in 0.25% in 0.25% in 0.25% in 0.25%
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Discount rate (64) 65 (1,548) 1,598
Future salary increases 55 (54) 1,481 (1,444)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes in actuarial
assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take into account the correlations
between the actuarial assumptions.

8 Current assets and current liabilities

With the exception of the Group’s and the Foundation’s deposits given for the rental of
properties and utilities of $10,529,000 (2013: $10,206,000) and $6,823,000 (2013:
$7,044,000) respectively and the Group’s other receivables and prepayments of $357,000
(2013: $374,000), the Group expect all other current assets and liabilities to be recovered
or settled within one year of the balance sheet date.
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Fees and other receivables

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fees receivables 5,140 5,710 3,574 4,057
Other receivables 4,158 1,083 4,158 1,083
Less: Allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (3,220) (3,837) (2,802) (3,214)
6,078 2,956 4,930 1,926

Impairment of fees receivables

Fees receivables are due immediately from the date of billing. The Group and the
Foundation record impairment losses in respect of fees and other receivables using an
allowance account, unless the Group and the Foundation satisfy that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against debtors
directly.

The movement in the allowance for impairment of doubtful debts during the year,
including both specific and collective loss components, was as follows:

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
At 1 September 3,837 3,244 3,214 2,901
Impairment loss recognised 685 1,246 685 892
Uncollectible amounts written off (1,302) (653) (1,097) (579)
At 31 August 3,220 3,837 2,802 3,214

At 31 August 2014, no debtors of the Group and the Foundation were individually
determined to be impaired. Based on ageing of fees receivables and repayment patterns
of customers the Group and the Foundation have determined that the Group’s and the
Foundation’s fees receivables collectively to be impaired by $3,220,000 (2013:
$3,837,000) and $2,802,000 (2013: $3,214,000) respectively. The Group and the
Foundation do not hold any collateral over these balances.

40
HEERREFERE 2013-2014



10

11

12
(@)

@ EEERREFERE 2013-2014

The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Amount due from/to subsidiary

Amount due from/to subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

Restricted cash

A deposit of $1,826,000 (2013: $1,532,000) is pledged to a bank for guarantees issued by
that bank in favour of MTR Corporation Limited under the terms of two separate tenancy
agreements.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Deposits with original maturities
less than three months 121,259 125,413 55,873 62,092
Cash at bank and in hand 85,781 98,271 60,541 76,416
207,040 223,684 116,414 138,508

The effective interest rates per annum relating to cash and cash equivalents of the Group
and the Foundation at the balance sheet date are 0.27% (2013: 0.35%) and 0.25% (2013:
0.26%) respectively.
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Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

The English Schools Foundation

Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

Reconciliation of surplus for the year to cash generated from operating activities:

Operating activities
Surplus for the year

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Nomination rights

Non-refundable building levy

Interest expense

Loss on disposals of properties,
plant and equipment

Depreciation

Expense recognised under
employee defined benefit
retirement scheme

Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in
inventories

(Increase)/decrease in rental and
utility deposits

(Increase)/decrease in
prepayments

Decrease/(increase) in loans to
staff

Decrease/(increase) in fees and
other receivables

Decrease in fees received in
advance

Increase in amount due to
subsidiary

Increase/(decrease) in provision
to meet staff conditions of
service

Increase/(decrease) in accounts
payables and accruals
excluding capital creditors

Decrease in government
hardship allowance

Decrease in scholarship fund
and hardship allowance

Net cash generated from
operating activities

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
(restated) (restated)
108,626 164,204 97,931 149,062
(5,086) (7,101) (4,757) (6,650)
(44,917) (67,790) (30,717) (49,500)
(19,310) (13,883) - -
59 19 59 19
4,407 1,457 4,339 1,457
111,167 86,440 103,664 83,057
4,224 6,356 4,224 6,356
159,170 169,702 174,743 183,801
(139) 17 - -
(323) (813) 221 (539)
(403) (1,392) 877 (1,942)
2,450 (1,348) 1,955 (1,486)
2,472 1,386 (3,004) 1,455
(10,928) (7,751) (13,508) (8,446)
- - 8,176 29,825
44 3,032 (3,236) 3,268
3,426 51,890 (5,388) 57,571
(1,462) (1,672) (1,462) (1,672)
(5,298) (8,387) - -
149,009 204,664 159,374 261,835
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13 Provision to meet staff conditions of service

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
At 1 September 88,238 85,206 73,168 69,900
Provision for the year 224,744 211,612 174,930 168,442
Payments made during the year (224,700) (208,580) (178,166) (165,174)
At 31 August 88,282 88,238 69,932 73,168

Under the Group’s and the Foundation’s contracts of employment, staff are entitled to
certain benefits in addition to their basic salary as explained in note 2(p). The Group and
the Foundation make provision for the amount payable to staff under such contracts.

14 Accounts payables and accruals

The Group The Foundation

2014 2013 2014 2013

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Accounts payable 14,707 29,458 5,382 19,789
Accruals and provision 99,062 133,316 80,965 112,535
Accruals for major repairs 130,761 82,207 130,761 82,207
Deferred income 76,472 49,317 62,188 39,722
Retention money 17,111 31,078 17,111 31,078
Deposits received 7,890 9,174 7,735 9,039
Other payables 6,974 6,523 5,549 5,099
352,977 341,073 309,691 299,469
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Government grants

The Government provides basic grants and hardship allowance to the Foundation. The
total grants received by the Group and the Foundation were as follows:

The Group The Foundation
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Basic grants 15(a) 271,112 271,117 271,112 271,117
Hardship allowance 15(b) 6,845 6,845 6,845 6,845
Refund of rent and rates 15(c) 12,943 12,188 10,021 9,464
290,900 290,150 287,978 287,426

The subvention review was concluded in July 2013. Excluding subvention of
$28,271,000 for students with special education needs in the Foundation’s mainstream
schools and the Jockey Club Sarah Roe School, the basic grants and hardship allowance
(collectively the “Subvention”) is expected to be phased out in 13 years starting from the
2016/17 school year until 2028/29 school year. The phase out amount in each year will
vary and range from approximately $17 million to $22 million according to the
Subvention currently provided to each year group of the Foundation’s mainstream
schools. All existing students of the Foundation will continue to benefit from the
Subvention, frozen at its current level, until they either graduate from the schools in Year
13 or leave the system. The phasing out of the Subvention will affect children entering
Year 1 of the Foundation’s schools in August 2016 and thereafter.

Grant per class

The Government's basic recurrent grant is a grant per class calculated to be equivalent to
the grant allowed for each class provided to other schools in the public-aided education
sector in 1999/2000. Since 1999/2000, the basic recurrent grant has been reduced by
12.372% in various stages through to 31 March 2007. No further reductions have been
made since 1 April 2007. The grant per class is paid for each qualifying class in a
Foundation school at 30 November each year and is used for education purposes only.
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15 Government grants (continued)
(b) Hardship allowance

In addition to the grant per class, the Government also provides an allowance for the
relief of hardship based upon a percentage of the recurrent grant per class. The
movement for the year was as follows:

The Group and the Foundation

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
At 1 September 35,622 37,294
Received from the Government 6,845 6,845
42,467 44,139

Utilised to permit fee relief in cases of hardship (8,307) (8,517)
At 31 August 34,160 35,622

The Group and the Foundation include the amount utilised to permit fee relief during the
year in income as a component of tuition fees.

(c) Refund of rent and rates

The Group and the Foundation also receives from the Government a reimbursement of
rent and rates actually paid for school premises. The charge for rent and rates, which is
included in other operating expenses, was arrived at as follows:

The Group The Foundation
Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Gross rent and rates for the
year 14,281 13,170 10,774 9,966
Less: Recovered or
recoverable from the
Government (12,943) (12,188) (10,021) (9,464)

4 1,338 982 753 502
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Scholarship fund and hardship allowance

Pursuant to the service agreement between ESL and the Government, ESL shall set aside
a sum, which shall not be less than 10% of its total school fee income from its Private
Independent Schools, to provide scholarships and other financial assistance for deserving
students at such schools in each school year. During the year ended 31 August 2014,
Renaissance College and Discovery College have each set aside 10% of their respective
tuition fees which consists of 8% (2013: 8%) as scholarship fund and 2% (2013: 2%) as
hardship allowance.

Tuition fees of Renaissance College and Discovery College transferred to scholarship
fund/hardship allowance during the year amounted to $20,878,000 (2013: $19,042,000)
and $12,751,000 (2013: $10,823,000) respectively.

The Group
Scholarship Hardship

fund allowance Total

$°000 $°000 $°000

At 1 September 2012 26,853 14,908 41,761

Addition 23,892 5,973 29,865
Utilisation (31,926) (1,263) (33,189)
Transfer (5,063) - (5,063)

At 31 August 2013 and

1 September 2013 13,756 19,618 33,374

Addition 26,903 6,726 33,629
Utilisation (35,202) (2,415) (37,617)
Transfer - (1,310) (1,310)

At 31 August 2014 5,457 22,619 28,076

The Group includes the amount utilised to permit fee relief during the year in income as a
component of tuition fees.
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17 Obligations under finance leases

At 31 August 2014, the Group and the Foundation had obligations under finance leases
repayable as follows:

The Group and the Foundation

2014 2013
Present Interest Present Interest

value of the expense Total value of the expense Total

minimum relating ~ minimum minimum relating ~ minimum

lease to future lease lease to future lease

payments periods payments payments periods payments

$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Within one year 738 127 865 133 10 143
Between one and two

years 704 125 829 33 3 36
Between two and five

years 1,510 293 1,803 - - -

2,214 418 2,632 33 3 36

2,952 545 3,497 166 13 179

18 Refundable capital levy

Refundable capital levy was introduced and payable by the parents of children joining the
Foundation’s school system in August 2011 and subsequent years. The levy is $25,000
for each child entering one of the Foundation's schools for the first time from August
2011 onwards and for each child that joins Year 7 from another school of the Foundation
from August 2011 onwards. Certain concessions are granted to families with more than
two children studying at ESF schools and teachers who are also parents of students
studying at ESF schools. The levy is repayable by the Foundation when the student
leaves the school.

19 Refundable debenture

In August 2013, the Group introduced the refundable debenture which is payable by
parents of children joining the Group’s kindergartens in August 2013 and subsequent
years. The debenture is $7,000 for each child entering one of the kindergartens for the
first time from August 2013 onwards. The debenture is repayable when the student
leaves the school with sufficient notice. The refundable debenture is non-transferable,
interest-free, non-depreciating and unsecured.
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Corporate nomination rights

Movements in the corporate nomination rights were as follows:

The Group and the Foundation

2014 2013
$°000 $°000
At 1 September - -
Issued 25,000 -
Less: Amortisation to statement of comprehensive
income (167) -
At 31 August 24,833 -
Less: Within one year or on demand (250) -
After one year 24,583 -
Reserves

The reserves of the Group and the Foundation represent the excess of assets over
liabilities; the opening and closing balances and the movements during the year are set
out in the statement of changes in reserves.

Under the terms of The English Schools Foundation Ordinance, no dividend or bonus
whatsoever can be paid and no gift or division of money or any property whatsoever can
be made by or on behalf of the Foundation to any of the officers or employees of the
Foundation, any of the members of the Board or any of the students of the schools of the
Foundation except by way of prize, reward or special grant or in the case of an employee
of the Foundation, by way of a dividend or bonus payable under a contract of
employment.

Reserves of the Group include total accumulated surplus of ESL amounting to
$23,841,000 (2013: $13,146,000). Under the terms of the Memorandum of Association
of ESL, no portion of the income and property of ESL can be paid or transferred, directly
or indirectly, by way of dividend, bonus or otherwise by way of profit to the members of
the ESL.
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21 Reserves

(a) Capital fund

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
The Foundation 80,217 49,500 80,217 49,500
Renaissance College 50,761 29,434 - -
Discovery College 29,787 17,604 - -
160,765 96,538 80,217 49,500

The Foundation introduced individual and corporate nomination rights schemes. The
income from the schemes is designated solely to finance redevelopment projects of the
Foundation and hence is included in the capital fund. During the year, payments are
made against Kowloon Junior School and King George V School redevelopment projects.
Renaissance College and Discovery College of the Group introduced non-refundable
building levy and nomination rights. The income is designated solely to finance capital
expenditure and hence is included in the capital fund.

(b) Schools reserves

The Group’s reserves include the accumulated surplus of individual schools of the
Foundation which amounted to $138,892,000 as at 31 August 2014 (2013:
$158,836,000). These reserves have been designated to finance operating and capital
activities at individual schools at the discretion of the respective School Councils. From
their reserves as at 31 August 2014, the respective School Councils have authorised or
contracted for capital commitments of $23,660,000 (2013: $48,506,000). The respective
School Councils also reserve certain sums for major upgrades at schools.

During the year, $78,930,000 (2013: $19,895,000) was transferred from schools reserves
to general reserve. The transfer represented various schools capital expenditure during
the year which was funded by the schools reserves.

(c) Capital management

The Group is a non-profit making organisation whose principal activity is the operation
of schools to provide education through the medium of English language. The Group is
not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements; its activities are mainly
funded by tuitions fees, government subventions, donations, rental and interest income.

In the absence of any capital the Group’s reserves are maintained at a level necessary to
meet the Group’s short and long term objectives taking account the importance of
safeguarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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22 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s activities. The Group describes below the Group’s exposure to these risks and
the financial risk management policies and practices used to manage these risks.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and account receivables and other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are placed with major financial
institutions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet.

(b) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor liquidity requirements to ensure that the
Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to bank deposits, cash
at bank and obligations under finance leases. The Group’s interest rate profile as is set
out in (i) below.
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The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

22 Financial risk management and fair values (continued)
(d) Currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and have limited exposure to currency risk which
arises from foreign currency purchases and receipts/payments for school activities jointly
organised with overseas institutions.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair
values at the balance sheet date because of their short term maturity.

23 Commitments

(a) The Group and the Foundation have certain capital commitments relating mainly to the
renovation of the schools and major upgrades of information technology systems. Capital
commitments outstanding at 31 August 2014 not provided for in these financial
statements were as follows:

The Group The Foundation
2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Contracted for 188,728 91,293 178,280 91,293
Authorised but not contracted for 133,135 327,261 133,135 326,005
321,863 418,554 311,415 417,298

(b) At 31 August 2014, the total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable as follows:

The Group The Foundation

2014 2013 2014 2013
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

Leased properties
Within one year 13,027 15,971 6,024 9,640
Between one and five years 10,802 12,679 - 6,024
Over five years 2,621 3,235 - -
26,450 31,885 6,024 15,664

Leased equipment
Within one year 7 78 7 78
Between one and five years 24 - 24 -
31 78 31 78

52

HEERREFERE 2013-2014 @



The English Schools Foundation
Financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2014

23 Commitments (continued)
(b) (continued)

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases. The leases run for an
initial period of three to six years, with some having an option to renew upon expiry
when all terms will be renegotiated. Contingent rental payable are based on a pre-
determined percentage of the monthly gross turnover on the condition that it is higher
than the minimum fixed rentals under the operating lease agreements.

The Group leases certain equipment under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of two to five years, with the option to return, renew or buy the
equipment upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

24 Contingent liabilities

The Group and the Foundation had contingent liabilities at 31 August 2014 amounting to
$3,201,000 (2013: $3,201,000) in respect of various utility guarantees issued by The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in favour of third parties.

25 Material related party transactions
Board of Governors and key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel consist of the following:

(1) Full time paid employees who are also members of the Board of Governors,
namely, representatives of the Committee of Principals, the Committee of Teachers,
the Committee of Support Staff and the Chief Executive Officer who is an ex-
officio member of the Board of Governors; and

(i1)) Director of Education, Chief Operating Officer of ESL, Director of Facilities, Chief
Financial Officer and Director of Human Resources.

The members of the Board of Governors other than those mentioned in note (i) did not
receive any remuneration during the current and previous year.

Remuneration for key management personnel is as follows:

2014 2013

$°000 $°000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 20,752 21,204
Retirement costs 157 150
20,909 21,354
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26 Accounting estimates and judgements

Notes 7 and 22 contain information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to defined benefit retirement scheme obligations and financial instruments respectively.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Useful lives and impairment of properties, plant and equipment

The Group has significant properties, plant and equipment and is required to estimate the
useful lives of these assets in order to ascertain the amount of depreciation charge for
each reporting period. The useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase of these
assets and each year the Group assesses the appropriateness of the estimated useful lives.
The assessment takes into account any unexpected adverse changes in circumstances or
events such as declines in projected results and changes in the operating environment.
The Group extends or shortens the useful lives and/or makes impairment provisions based
on the assessment.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews whether there are any indications of
impairment and will recognise an impairment loss if the carrying amount of an asset is
higher than its recoverable amount. The sources utilised to identify indications of
impairment are often subjective in nature and the Group has to use judgement in applying
such information to its operations. The Group’s interpretation of this information has a
direct impact on whether an impairment assessment is performed as at any given balance
sheet date. If an indication of impairment is identified, such information is further
subjected to an exercise that requires the Group to estimate the recoverable amount of the
asset, which is the greater of its net selling price and its value in use.

The Group is required to make assumptions to make this assessment, including the
utilisation of such assets, the cash flows to be generated, appropriate discount rates, etc.
Changes in any of these assumptions could result in a material change in future estimates
of the recoverable amount of any asset.

(b) Accruals for development project costs and major repairs

The Group undertakes capital projects and various repairs and maintenance work.
Invoices from the contractors are often received some time after the work is performed.
Accordingly the Group has to review the status of each of the projects and to make
certain estimates on the stage of completion of the projects. Actual costs may be higher
or lower than estimated at the balance sheet date.
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27 Possible impact of amendments to standards, new standards and
interpretations to standards issued but not yet effective for the current
accounting year

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments to standards, new standards and interpretations to standards which are not

yet effective for the year ended 31 August 2014 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and new interpretations is expected to be in the year of initial
application. So far, the Group has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

The English Schools Foundation
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The English Schools Foundation Ordinance)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The English Schools
Foundation (“the Foundation”) and its subsidiary (“the Group™) set out on pages 5 to 55,
which comprise the consolidated and Foundation balance sheets as at 31 August 2014, the
consolidated and Foundation statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated and
Foundation statements of changes in reserves and the consolidated and Foundation cash
flow statements for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Board of Governors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The Board of Governors of the Foundation are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the Board of Governors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other persons for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Board of Governors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of

The English Schools Foundation (continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The English Schools Foundation Ordinance)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs of the Foundation and of the Group as at 31 August 2014 and of their
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

11 December 2014
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